
 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD  
Date:  June 10, 2015 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Place: Council Chambers, City Hall 

 
The mission of the Park Board shall be to provide policy advice and assistance 

to the Department of Parks and Community Services and City Council in order to ensure the effective provision 
of Parks and Community Services programs and facilities to the residents of the City of Kirkland. 

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 May Park Board Meeting Minutes 5 minutes 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 5 minutes 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS   
 
6. PRESENTATIONS   
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 15 minutes 

a. Correspondence 
- Emails from Jim Kelly and Annabelle Ketchum 

b. Staff Reports – June update 
c. Committee Reports 
d. Comments from the Chair 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Naming suggestions for North Juanita Open Space 15 minutes 
 Topic:  Review submitted suggestions for park naming 
 Action:  Develop naming recommendation to City Council 
 
b. Aquatics, Recreation and Community Center Project 15 minutes 
 Topic:  Update on project planning activities 
 Action:  Discussion only 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS  
a.  Green Kirkland Partnership 20-year Plan Draft 30 minutes 
 Topic:  Receive draft 20-Year Forest and Natural Areas Restoration Plan 
 Action:  Discussion only 

 



Kirkland Park Board 
June 10, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

Alternate Formats: Persons with disabilities may request materials in alternative formats. Persons with hearing impairments 
may access the Washington State Telecommunications Relay Service at 711. 
Title VI: Kirkland’s policy is to fully comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act by prohibiting discrimination against any person 
on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the provision of benefits and services resulting from its programs and 
activities. Any person who believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file a complaint with the City. 
To request an alternate format, file a complaint or for questions about Kirkland’s Title VI Program, contact the Title VI 
Coordinator at 425-587-3011 or titlevicoordinator@kirklandwa.gov. 
 
The City of Kirkland strives to accommodate people with disabilities. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 425.587.3190, or 
for TTY Services call 425.587.3111 (by noon the work day prior to the meeting) if we can be of assistance. If you should 
experience difficulty hearing the proceedings, please bring this to the attention of the Chairperson by raising your hand. 

b.  Private Parks in Evergreen Hill Neighborhood 10 minutes 
 Topic:  Receive update regarding private parks 
 Action:  Discussion only 
 
c.  Juanita Heights Park House Repurposing 5 minutes 
 Topic:  Receive update house at Juanita Heights 
 Action:  Discussion only 

 
 
10. GOOD OF THE ORDER 5 minutes 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT Estimated meeting completion: 8:35 p.m. 

 
Next meetings: 
July 8, 2015, 6:00 p.m.  
No August meeting 
September 9, 2015 
 



 

KIRKLAND PARK BOARD 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 
May 13, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 13, 2015, Park Board Regular Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Adam 
White. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members present: Chair Adam White, Vice Chair Kevin Quille, Sue Contreras, Kelli Curtis, Rick 
Ockerman, Jim Popolow, and Rosalie Wessels.  
 
Jason Chinchilla arrived at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Staff present: Michael Cogle, Jason Filan and Jennifer Schroder 
 
Recording Secretary: Katie Cava 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the April 8th meeting were reviewed.  Ms. Curtis moved to approve the minutes 
as presented.  Ms. Contreras seconded.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE  
 
No items 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS 
 
No items 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
Sally Otten and Tom Neir presented on the Kirkland Parks Foundation, introducing the 
recently formed foundation and highlighting their initial projects of funding the picnic 
shelter at Waverly Beach Park and native plants for Green Kirkland Partnership.  
 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS  
 
a. Correspondence 
Emails received from Rick Colella and Derek Cook were shared with the Board.  



 
Kirkland Park Board Minutes 

May 13, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
Ms. Schroder discussed an email received from Jonathan Friebert received after the 
Park Board Packet was published.  
 
b. Staff Reports  
Staff reported on recreation class enrollment, preparing for season aquatic employee 
hiring, volleyball league enrollment and Green Kirkland Partnership’s work. Reminders 
were made about the Plaza of Champions induction ceremony on May 24th and the 
opening of the seasonal farmers markets at Juanita Beach and Marina parks the first 
week in June.  
 
c. Committee Reports 
Mr. Quille reported on the Kalakala Committee meeting and how the pieces of the 
Kalakala that the City acquired will be placed along the CKC.  
 
Ms. Wessels reported on the Evergreen Hill neighborhood meeting 
 
Ms. Curtis reported on the Central Houghton neighborhood meeting and the Green 
Kirkland new steward orientation.  
 
Ms. Contreras reported on the South Rose Hill/Bridle Trails neighborhood meeting and 
an article in Kirkland Views. 
 
Mr. Popolow reported on the Green Kirkland Earth Day event and the DECA meeting 
 
d. Comments from the Chair 
No items. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a. Aquatics, Recreation and Community Center Project  
Mrs. Schroder reported on direction provided by City Council to for their June 2nd 
meeting and the joint meeting with the City of Bellevue. No additional discussion was 
had. 
 
b. Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Update  
Mr. Cogle presented recent revisions to the Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 
Plan and held discussions regarding an all-weather field and park impact fees. 
 
c. Designated Off-Leash Areas Proposal Update  
Mr. Cogle gave background on and shared direction provided by the Council Committee 
on the Designated Off-Leash Areas proposal. 



 
Kirkland Park Board Minutes 

May 13, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
d. Meeting Considerations for 2015  
Ms. Schroder discussed elements of the proposed parks tour taking place in lieu of the 
July Regular Meeting, and gave reminders about changes to this year’s meeting 
schedule in August and November. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Juanita Beach Park Bathhouse Replacement Project  
Mr. Cogle updated the Board on the upcoming Juanita Beach Park Bathhouse 
Replacement project and requested a Park Board Member serve on the consultant 
selection panel. Ms. Wessels volunteered for the panel.  
 
b. Committee Assignments  
Board Members reviewed their committee assignments and made new appointments. 
 
10. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Additional discussion was had. 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mr. Ockerman moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Chinchilla seconded.  Motion carried 
(8-0). 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Jennifer Schroder, Director  Adam White, Chair 
Parks and Community Services  Park Board 
 



1

Cheryl Harmon

From: Jonathan Friebert <jfrieb19@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2015 9:18 AM
To: Cheryl Harmon
Cc: Jennifer Schroder
Subject: Park Board: Kingsgate V Park

Hello: 
 
My name is Jonathan Friebert and I serve on the Homeowners Association (HOA) Board for the Kingsgate V 
Community. 
 
First, I wanted to thank you for your leadership on the challenging issues surrounding the parks in the City of 
Kirkland.  I am very impressed with the 2015‐2020 Parks Recreation and Open Space Plan (PROS) that has 
been developed and look forward to working with you on implementing it. 
 
The Kingsgate V HOA has been engaged in a dialog with Jennifer over the past 15 months discussing a 
partnership with the City of Kirkland pertaining to our park.  Recognizing that our park sits in area where 
Kirkland is deficient in having a neighborhood park, we think there is a win/win scenario here. 
 
Our HOA has approved the Board entering into negotiations with the City to take over management of the 
park, minus our pool, for a nominal fee per year.  Our intent is retain ownership of the park but we are willing 
to open up our space for Kirkland residents to use in exchange for Kirkland Parks taking over the day to day 
management of it.  We would also work with Kirkland on any development and improvements to our park 
such as adding in an athletic field, replacing our recreational equipment, etc.     
 
In reading your draft 2015‐2020 plan, I saw that you have $650,000 earmarked for acquisition of a 
neighborhood park in the northeastern portion of the Kingsgate neighborhood (Gap Area E).  I also see that 
your our looking at 2021+ for such an acquisition. 
 
I wanted to let the Parks Board know that you have a neighborhood park ready for your use today that will not 
require an acquisition.  The Kingsgate V Community is ready to move forward in discussing a partnership with 
Kirkland so that you can address Gap Area E without committing the complications of acquiring park land.   
 
I encourage you to include us in your 2015 plans and budget.  I hope you will alter the draft PROS before it is 
finalized and begin the process of partnering with Kingsgate V. 
 
Thank you! 
 
Jonathan Friebert 
Kingsgate V Homeowners Association Board 
425‐890‐4726 
 
 
Sent from Windows Mail 

7a.



1

Cheryl Harmon

From: Jim Kelly <jimk@pinnacleridge.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2015 1:42 PM
To: Cheryl Harmon
Subject: Park Board - dead fish & crows

Hello, 
 
I couldn’t find a contact in Kirkland’s Parks department that seemed appropriate to send this to.  I am hoping one of you 
on the Parks Board will be able to forward it to the right person/desk. 
 
Over the past few days my wife and I have noticed an unusually large number of dead fish on the beaches at both 
Waverly Park and Marina Park.  This morning I saw several dozen dead fish in the beach area of Marina Park.  This could 
be caused by an algae bloom depleting the lake water of oxygen, or it could be something chemical. 
 
On the way home from Marina Park this morning I saw two dead crows on the lower gravel trail loop of Heritage 
park.  When I mentioned this to my wife she told me she saw a crow in that same area of Heritage park yesterday that 
was staggering about and looked ill.  In four years of walking through Heritage Park at least once or twice each day and 
my wife and I have never seen even a single dead crow there.  So seeing two in one day is sort of a red flag event. 
 
The combination of dead fish and dead crows leads me to believe that something chemical is involved.  It could be that 
the fish are ingesting something that kills them and then the crows are eating dead fish and become ill 
themselves.  Whatever the problem is, it would seem prudent for the Parks department to check it out in case it is 
something hazardous to humans or pets. 
 
Regards, 
Jim Kelly 
246 7th Ave W 
Kirkland 
Cell:  425‐802‐3563 

7a.



1

Cheryl Harmon

From: Annabelle Ketchum <annabelleketchum@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2015 9:28 PM
To: Cheryl Harmon
Subject: Park Board

To whom it may concern,  
 
People have been using the new take a bag leave a bag bins at the Juanita bay baseball fields for soiled dog bags. I don't 
know if a sign could be installed or if the bin could simply be checked when trash is removed.  I realize that this probably 
doesn't concern almost anyone because it is a petty issue worthy of a parks and rec episode, however I feel that this bin 
could be a very positive addition to the park, if only used correctly.  
 
Thank you for all you do.  
 
Annabelle Ketchum.  
 
Sent from my iPhone 

7a.



7b. 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, CPRP, Director 
 
Date: June 5, 2015 
 
Subject: June Staff Update 

 

RECREATION DIVISION 

 June 6th will be the Recreation division’s largest seasonal hiring orientation.  Nearly eighty newly-
hired staff will complete their paperwork and receive valuable training and tools to have a safe 
and successful summer. 

 Below is the month-to-month revenue report.  May has been an active registration time with many 
customers signing up for summer programs. 
 

   JAN FEB MAR APR MAY TOTAL 

2014 $46,858 $37,019 $357,148 $150,639 $122,939 $714,604 

2015 $79,882 $47,661 $406,953 $135,182 $131,254 $800,932 

variance $33,024 $10,642 $49,805 ($15,457) $8,315 $86,328 

 
North Kirkland Community Center 
 Six weeks of Summer Theatre Camp for ages 4 to 6 are entirely SOLD OUT!  Currently 86 children 

are enrolled and imaginations are going to run wild this summer as they focus on drama, vocal 
work, movement, and music.  The highlight of the week is a short performance for friends and 
family. 

 Kirkland Parks and Community Services staff was present May 8th at the Old Redmond 
Schoolhouse Community Center for a Parent Resource Fair presented by the Lake Washington 
PTSA Council.  It was an opportunity to share with parents and community members of the Lake 
Washington School District information on activities and summer camps that Kirkland Parks 
provide. 

 Summer Camp staff are all hired and overjoyed to be a part of the Kirkland Parks family this year.  
The momentum is picking up as we are getting closer to the end of the school year and the 
beginning of summer camps.  Staff is busy planning activities, ordering supplies, and looking 
forward to the endless possibilities that summer will bring. 

Aquatics & Youth Sports  
 Peter Kirk Pool opens June 8th with a variety of programs: early morning lap swim, evening open 

swim and family swim, Peter Kirk Learn-to-Swim swimming lessons, water aerobics and pool 
rentals. Currently, 2,480 participants are registered in summer aquatics programs generating 
$207,000 in revenue.  

 Orca Swim Team tryouts are June 13th at the Peter Kirk Pool and practice begins June 22nd. 
Swimmers practice Monday-Thursday and participate in meets on the weekends against other 
teams in the Craze Swim Team League. On Saturday, July 14th, the Peter Kirk Pool will host the 
first swim meet of the season.  



June 5, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 Lifeguards begin guarding Houghton, Waverly and Juanita beaches on July 1st. Beach preparations 
begin in mid-June and beach lifeguards will go receive additional training on June 26th.  

Sports and Fitness 
 Over the next week sports division staff will be wrapping up the indoor volleyball program. There 

were 37 teams playing in the five different divisions. The next opportunity to participate in the 
indoor program will be the fall session slated to begin in mid-September.  

 The beach volleyball league numbers are rising as the summer season inches closer. Both co-ed 
divisions are full with eight teams apiece. The two women’s divisions are steadily growing as well, 
with a total of eight teams registered thus far. Staff hopes to attract a few more teams before the 
start date after the Independence Day holiday. 

 Summer tennis staff has been hired and are included in the June 6th staff orientation.  Eight 
seasonal staff lead the program with four returning from last summer.  The tennis offerings 
include camps and lessons at four locations including Peter Kirk Park, Juanita Beach Park, Kirkland 
Middle School tennis courts and Juanita High School tennis courts. 

 The spring softball program is off to a good start. Both the co-ed and Men’s Low/Mid divisions are 
operating. Games will continue through June. The next opportunity to play will be during the late 
summer season with those games starting the week of July 19th. 

 The popular Sunday night open gym program will end on June 7th due to the summer break and 
reopen in mid-September.  

Peter Kirk Community Center  
 PKCC kicked off the 12th year of the Kirkland Steppers on June 2nd. This program encourages an 

active lifestyle as well as a health and wellness goal for older adults age 50+ in Kirkland. Fairwinds 
Redmond and EvergreenHealth are the major sponsors for this program, because of these 
sponsorships the program is able to offer each participant several giveaways and incentives 
throughout the 16-week program.  Each week a local business sponsors the Tuesday walks by 
offering discounts and freebies along the walking route. This program will run through the end of 
September. 

 Peter Kirk Day camp SOLD OUT this year before the end of May, this is a first in the long history of 
the camp. The City has hired an enthusiastic staff that can’t wait to get started and have several 
new field trips planned as well as some annual favorites.  

 PKCC staff has been taking the Welcome Wagon program on the road. In May they were invited to 
visit Life Care Centers of Kirkland and Holy Family Church to talk about the program and services 
PKCC has to offer people of all ages in the community. Staff has scheduled several other talks at 
local area churches and organizations in the coming months. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVSION 

Special Events 
 The Special Events Team continues to meet the first Thursday of every month at City Hall. 
 On May 7th, the Special Events Team reviewed permit applications for Salsa Marina, Evening 

Summer Concerts, Celebrate Kirkland! 4th of July, Seattle Sounders FC Rave Green Run and the 
Susan G. Komen Seattle 3-Day Walk.  

 Notable May Events:  
 The Mother’s Day Half Marathon, held at Juanita Beach Park on May 10th, was the first official 

special event to be held along the Cross Kirkland Corridor. What a success! More than 800 half 
marathon runners and walkers traversed approximately five miles of the CKC, while close to 
700 participants opted for the shorter 5k course through the Market Neighborhood so they 
could get back to the Mimosa Garden.    

 Those who participated in the annual Kirkland Crop Work-Walk held on May 16th, enjoyed a 
new route along the Cross Kirkland Corridor which started at Hopelink and ended at St. John’s 
Episcopal Church in downtown Kirkland.   



June 5, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 The annual 7 Hills of Kirkland bike ride held on Memorial Day at Marina Park was a huge 
success this year! Fund raising efforts brought in more than $90k for Attain Housing programs. 
Over 1,000 participants enjoyed new programming which included food trucks, live music, The 
Bubble Man and an Honoring Ceremony.   

 Juanita Friday Market: 
 Join us in a kick-off to summer fun! Nearly 40 vendors are ready to celebrate Opening Day on 

Friday, June 5, from 3pm to 7pm. This is a true community event!  
 Swing by the Embody Health booth, one of the Market’s sponsors. 
 Checkout the Community Booths:  Northshore Utility District, Lake Washington Toddler Group 

and EF Educational Homestay Program. There will be plenty of fun freebies for the kiddos.  
 And finally for entertainment, the Market’s starting off with a bang! We’re super excited to 

welcome the Bluefish Festival and art show! Thank you Kirkland Youth Council! 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 
Notes from the Field 
 

With the help of Kudos Kirkland and staff, Memorial Day 2015 was another success at the 
Cemetery.  408 crosses and flags were placed on Veteran’s headstones in memory of their service.  
Staff and volunteers did a great job sprucing up the place for the special occasion.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Staff has been spending a large amount of time along the waterfront beaches picking up two 
types of dead fish.  This time every year, Sticklebacks die off in high quantities after they spawn, 
and most years there are also some yellow Perch, but this year staff are picking up hundreds of 
fish daily.  The factors contributing to the perch die-off are the rapid growth of aquatic vegetation 
which consumes a lot of oxygen, and a bacteria that thrives in this year’s warmer lake 
temperature.  The City has not been notified that this bacteria is of concern to humans or animals 
in the water. 

 The department is thankful for its great seasonal crew who are instrumental in helping the 
maintenance division get through the summer.  We could not provide the level of service without 
their valuable help! 

Kirkland Cemetery May 2015 



June 5, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 PKCC received a small upgrade to the front entry this past month.  Operations and PKCC staff 
collaborated to develop a sustainable and more attractive entrance to the building  Various colors 
of rock & stone were used.   
 

       
 

GREEN KIRKLAND PARTNERSHIP 

 May was a busy month for the Green Kirkland Partnership. 
With high school students completing their service hours 
before the end of the school year many of our volunteer 
events received an attendance boost. Stewards led events at 
North Juanita Open Space, Everest Park, Crestwoods Park, 
Juanita Bay Park, Watershed Park, and one event was led by 
EarthCorps at Everest Park.  

 The following table summarizes GKP events and other 
activities conducted by volunteers in April. It includes 
volunteer information from events led by stewards, staff and 
contractors, and ongoing volunteering. 

April Event Type Number of 
Events 

Number of 
Volunteers 

Volunteer 
Hours 

Dollar 
Equivalent1 

Steward Led Events 10 139 373 $10,272.42

Contractor Led Events 1 128 512 $14,100.48 

Staff Led Events 1 35 87.5 $2,409.75 

Ongoing Volunteering N/A 19 164.25 $4,523.45

All April Volunteering 912 321 1,136.75 $31,306.10

Groups Engaged: EarthCorps, Garden Gate HOA, Lake Washington High School students, 
University of Washington Students, UW-Bothell Students, Pacifica Institute, Juanita High School 
students, Starbucks, ATG Stores, Adventure Church, UW-Evans School, Eastside Prep Students, 
Kiwanis Sunrisers Club, Cronus and Ford of Kirkland 

1 Dollar Equivalent = Hours x $27.54 
  

PKCC Entryway – Before PKCC Entryway – After 

Concur volunteers at Juanita Bay Park 



June 5, 2015 
Page 5 
 

Event Highlight: Juanita Bay Park 
 On May 15th, the Green Kirkland Partnership partnered with Concur to host their first Day of 

Service at Juanita Bay Park. 40 volunteers spent the afternoon removing invasive plants from the 
young forest. We are looking forward to this becoming an annual occurrence for the company.  

Community Highlight 
 On May 17th, 16 community members attended the Green Kirkland Steward Orientation to learn 

about the Steward Program. The Orientation went very well and included both PowerPoint 
presentations and field training on volunteer management and restoration techniques. GKP staff 
will follow up with orientation attendees that expressed interest after the training in becoming 
Stewards.  

Restoration Highlight 
 On May 18th and 19th, the Forterra Washington Conservation Corps Crew spent two half days 

doing restoration work at Kiwanis Park. The Crew worked in areas with large amounts of invasive 
plants on a steep slope making it an area unsuitable for volunteers to work and crew time was 
provide free of charge by Forterra.  

Other Notable Items 
 On May 25th, Hallie O’Brien joined the Green Kirkland Partnership team as the first GKP summer 

seasonal employee. We are very excited to have the additional capacity to support events and 
accomplish restoration work.  

What’s Coming up 
 Upcoming June Events 

 Wednesdays, June 3rd, 10th, 17th and 24th at Cotton Hill, 9:30am-11:30am. Contact Karen Story 
karen@nwnative.us  

 Wednesdays, June 3rd, 10th, 17th and 24th at Carillon Woods, 9am-10am. Contact Lisa 
kirby994@frontier.com  

 Thursday, June 4th, 11th, 18th, and 25th at Juanita Bay Park, 10am-noon. Contact Nona, 
nonaganz@frontier.com 

 Saturday, June 6th, Juanita Heights Park 10am-2pm register at 
www.earthcorps.org/volunteer.php 

 Saturday, June 6th, North Juanita Open Space 10am-1pm register at www.greenkirkland.org 
 Wednesday, June 10th, Crestwoods Park 2pm-4pm register at www.greenkirkland.org 
 Saturday, June 13th, Kiwanis Park 9am-noon register at www.greenkirkland.org  
 Friday, June 19th, Juanita Heights Park 10am-2pm register at 

www.earthcorps.org/volunteer.php 
 Saturday, June 27th, Juanita Bay Park 10am-1pm register at www.greenkirkland.org 
 Sunday, June 28th, Watershed Park 1pm-3pm register at www.greenkirkland.org 

 Photos of recent volunteer events can be viewed at www.facebook.com/GreenKirkPartnership  



8a. 
 
 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
To: Park Board 
 
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
 
Date: June 5, 2015 
 
 
Subject: Naming Suggestions for North Juanita Open Space Tract 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Park Board review submitted suggestions for naming of the park/open space property 
known as the North Juanita Open Space Tract and develop a naming recommendation to the 
City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
During the month of May the Department of Parks and Community Services solicited naming 
suggestions from the community for the North Juanita Open Space Tract.  Attached is a 
compilation of the correspondence we have received. 
 
The following is a list of the names that have been suggested: 
 
 (in honor of) Anna Josten 
 Brambly Park 
 Cavalier 
 Cavalier Garden Park 
 Cavalier Grove Park 
 Cavalier Woods 
 Elaine Cummins 
 Escuchame or “Schoochy” (Ms. Cummins’ dog) 
 Flowering Plum Park 
 Friendship Park 
 Generations Park 
 Happy Church Park 
 Happy Park 
 Hidden Park 

 Hubbard Play Field 
 Juanita Garden Friendship Park 
 Juanita Gardens 
 Juanita Pocket Park 
 Kids Community Park 
 Langdon Park 
 Neighborhood Park 
 North Juanita Open Space Park 
 One Acre Park 
 Pharaoh Head 
 Red Cedar Park 
 Restoration Park 
 Sather Park 
 St. Elk 



 
Naming Suggestions for North Juanita Open Space Tract 
June 5, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Note that the Park Board is not required to select a name from those suggested.  The Park 
Board may choose to recommend a name not on the list, or combine suggestions to form a 
new name.  The City’s park naming policy is attached. 
 
Staff will lead the Board through a voting/selection process at your meeting to assist in 
formulating the Board’s recommendation to City Council.  We anticipate that the Board 
recommendation will be considered by the Council later this summer. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 



 HELP US NAME THE NORTH JUANITA OPEN SPACE 

The Kirkland Park Board is seeking suggestions from citizens for the naming of the North Juanita Open Space 

Tract.  The one‐acre property, located on N.E. 129th Street between 111th Place N.E. and 112th Place N.E., has 

recently been reclaimed for neighborhood use through the restoration activities of local volunteers.   

Neighbors and volunteers of all ages, organized by the Green Kirkland Partnership, have spent several months 

clearing and cleaning up the site, removing invasive plants and planting native trees and shrubs.  Children’s 

play equipment will be added later this year. 

Name suggestions should be submitted by email before June 1 to parkboard@kirklandwa.gov.  Suggestions 

should be consistent with the City’s park naming policy, which states that the name of a park or open space 

should be based on one or more of the following criteria: 

(1) neighborhood or geographical identification;  

(2) a natural or geological feature; 

(3) historical or cultural significance;  

(4) an individual who has given outstanding civic service to the Kirkland park system, or has donated substantial funds or 

land to the Kirkland park system; and  

(5) a civic group or corporation whose mission statement is compatible with City goals and objectives and that has made a 

significant contribution of civic service, land, or money to the Kirkland park system. 

The Park Board will forward a naming recommendation to the City Council for final approval this summer. 

 

For more information contact Michael Cogle, Kirkland Parks & Community Services, at mcogle@kirklandwa.gov. 

For more information about how you can volunteer at this Open Space, visit the City of Kirkland website at 

www.kirklandwa.gov and search “Green Kirkland Partnership”. 



‐ 1 of 7 ‐ 
 

NORTH JUANITA OPEN SPACE 
PARK NAMING SUGGESTIONS 
 
Emails received April 29 through June 1, 2015 
 
 
From: Kelly Rovegno [mailto:kerovegno@gmail.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 4:40 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: North Juanita Open Space Name 
 
Having grown up on 111th PL NE, I would like to suggest the name “Happy Church Park” to the Park Board. The Happy 
Church was a small non‐denominational church that stood on the land that became 112th PL NE. Even for those who did 
not attend (I did not) The Happy Church was a landmark within Totem Lake, known for the funny and positive messages 
on their readerboard.  Many of us in the neighborhood were sad to see it demolished. Naming the park after The Happy 
Church would be a good way for the City of Kirkland to honor the local history of the area. 

Regards, 

Kelly Rovegno 

From: Kent Jonson [mailto:kjjonson@comcast.net]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 7:14 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Naming of North Juanita Open Space 
 
Dear Park Board Members:  Please consider the names:  Hubbard Play Field or Langdon Park 
 
Thank you. 
Janet Jonson 

 
From: Bonnie Harpel [mailto:gidget142@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 12:06 AM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: NJOS Name Suggestions 
 
Hello!   
 
My name is Bonnie Harpel.  I am one of the stewards of the NJOS.  I would love to submit some suggestions for this 
lovely green space behind our house.  They are in order by my preference. :) 
 
Restoration Park‐ because of how drastic a change has taken place.  What used to be an eight‐foot thick mat of 
Himalayan blackberry canes is now open space and native plantings.  I also like this name because it suggests healing for 
a neighborhood that was conflicted about the development of this space.   
 
One Acre Park‐ Naming the park for its small size emphasizes how special and unique it is.   
 
Red Cedar Park‐ for the well‐established and beautiful Western Red Cedars in the space that are decades old.   
 



‐ 2 of 7 ‐ 
 

Generations Park‐ for our hope that not only will all generations use and enjoy this park together, but that it would also 
be enjoyed for generations to come.   
 
Flowering Plum Park‐ for the large number of native Indian plums that actually survived the inundation of Himalayan 
blackberry.   
 
Neighborhood Park‐ pretty generic, but has a sense of unity. 
 
Cavalier Garden Park‐ super pretentious, but perhaps we could call it Caga (cah‐gah)) Park for short?  For the names 
given to the parcels by developers: Garden Gate and Cavalier.   
 
‐Bonnie 

 
From: Dawn [mailto:maridwells@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 3:17 AM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Open Space park name reco 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
Please find below a naming suggestion for the Juanita open space. 
 
Suggested park name: Juanita Garden Friendship park 
 
Why: the open space park is the connecting portal between the Juanita HS neighborhoods and  Garden Gate community. 
The Garden Gate community was built into the established Juanita HS neighborhood in 2009. At the time of construction 
and into 2010/2011, Garden Gate homeowners encountered some negative sentiment from the established 
homeowners bordering the new build. The new homeowners were not embraced or welcomed to the neighborhood 
with open arms. However, with time and the mutual goal of developing the open space into a beautiful and safe 
community park, the neighborhoods began to blend, align & unite. Neighbors and other volunteers came together and 
spent several months clearing and cleaning up the site, removing invasive plants and planting native trees and shrubs. 
The result is a lovely community park where friends & family can gather. Naming the park 'Juanita Garden Friendship' is 
a tribute to both neighborhoods coming together as one in the name of friendship & community. 
 
Suggested name is based on neighborhood or geographical identification AND historical or cultural significance, as per 
policy. 
 
Alternative name suggestions: 
‐ Friendship Park 
‐ Juanita Gardens 
 
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
Regards, 
M. Dawn Wells 
13031 112th Ave NE 
Garden Gate homeowner 

   



‐ 3 of 7 ‐ 
 

 

 
From: Connie Winter [mailto:cwinter@pacrimaero.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 8:31 AM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: name for North Juanita park 
 
I suggest you use Cavalier – for the original plat name of the neighborhood. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Connie Winter 
Office Manager 
Pacific Rim Aerospace 
11321 NE 120th ST 
Kirkland, WA   98034   USA 
p 1.425.284.7300, f 1.425.284.7337 

 
From: mansoor [mailto:mansoor.jafry@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 12:18 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Suggestion on naming public open space in Juanita 
 
Hello Park Board!  
 
Hope all you guys are doing well. Saw this article on the Kirkland Reporter and wanted to pitch in with my suggestion.  
 
Personally I think Pharoah Head is a fine name. It is a unique name that has relevance. I think it will intrigue people and 
lead them to finding out more about the story behind the name, and make them go "Oh yeah, it does look like a 
pharoah's head. How cool!"  
 
Just my 2 cents.  
 
Thank you once again for your persistent efforts in transforming it from an unusable piece of land to a natural escape 
where the neighbors can come together.   
 
Thanks, 
Mansoor 

 
From: dougrough@aol.com [mailto:dougrough@aol.com]  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 9:43 PM 
To: Michael Cogle; Cheryl Harmon 
Cc: ken.albinger@gmail.com; edcolio@gmail.com; ejdarling@yahoo.com; brianmagee24@live.com 
Subject: Re: Kirkland Neighborhood News: Kirkland Park Board seeks name for North Juanita Open Space 
 
Michael Cogle and the Parks Board,  
  At the May 11 meeting of the Juanita Neighborhood Association names were suggested and a vote was taken on 
possible names for the "North Juanita Open Space" park:  The winner, with nine votes was: 
 
Happy Park 



‐ 4 of 7 ‐ 
 

(recognizing the former Happy Church at the site) 
 
Runners Up: 
Juanita Pocket Park 
Hidden Park 
 
‐‐Doug Rough  425‐821‐5529 RoughHouse.org ‐‐ RetreatsAndReunions.com 

 
From: c.bart@frontier.com [mailto:c.bart@frontier.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2015 9:19 AM 
To: Michael Cogle 
Subject: North Juanita Open Space Name 
 
You could name it Sather Park after the Pastor of the Happy Church. 
Thank you, 
Candice Bartleson 

 
From: jaynamason@comcast.net [mailto:jaynamason@comcast.net]  
Sent: Monday, May 25, 2015 8:37 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: North Juanita Open Space Park‐Name Suggestion 
 
Hello, 
  
Our submission for the name of the North Juanita open space is St. Elk. We have come up with the this unique name for 
our lovely park from the history of this area. We have chosen the title “St.” because the of Happy Church that was next 
to the park’s land. We have chosen the term “Elk” because elk are native to Western North America. Also, elk tend to 
eat berries which means that they would also consume blackberries, and blackberries are very abundant in our 
neighborhood park. 
  
Have a fantastic day! –North Juanita Open Space’s dedicated volunteers :) 

 
From: Jocelyn Sauze [mailto:jocolato11@gmail.com]  
Sent: Monday, May 25, 2015 8:43 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Name Submission for North Juanita Open Space 
 
Hello! 
  
Our submission for the name of the North Juanita open space is St. Elk. We have come up with this name for the 
flourishing park based on the history of this area. We have chosen the title “St.” because the of Happy Church that was 
next to the park’s land. We have chosen the term “Elk” because elk are native to Western North America. Elk also eat 
berries including blackberries, and blackberries are abundant in our neighborhood park. 
  
Have a great day! 
‐ volunteers of the North Juanita Open Space  

   



‐ 5 of 7 ‐ 
 

 

 
From: "Whitney Taylor" <livin4liv@gmail.com> 
To: "Michael Cogle" <MCogle@kirklandwa.gov> 
Subject: naming Pharoah Head Open Space 

Dear Park Board, 
 
I'd like to propose that Pharaoh Head Open Space be named after a community advocate who helped lead the efforts to 
secure the land as a green space ‐ Elaine Cummins or the dog she walked that helped inform her views of the need for a 
more walkable community with open green space ‐ Escuchame (Spanish for Listen to Me), aka "Schoochy".  Elaine 
helped shape and lead the community based efforts to clear the land for the green space. 
 
As a longtime resident of 26 years, Elaine was a continual presence in the city working on efforts to better Kirkland for 
all.  In 2003, she along with city staff started the design of a walking map through her job at Public Health.  The former 
city manager had seen walking maps in Europe and wanted something similar for Kirkland. As Elaine and the team 
mapped various neighborhoods, it became apparent that all of Kirkland wasn't equal in walkability (there weren't 
walkable areas to map!). Elaine teamed up with various city departments to increase the city's walkability and create a 
walking map of Kirkland (see attached). 
 
Elaine began her advocacy for Pharaoh Head Open Space in 2003 from discussions with the Kirkland City Manager's 
Office on how to make available land into a green space.  There was neighborhood opposition, but Elaine went to the 
City Park Board meetings monthly and coordinated with neighbors in favor of the open space. When word got out that 
Happy Church was selling the property to a developer and many of the neighbors surrounding Pharaoh Head rallied to 
stop the development. 
 
Ms. Cummins knew that the neighborhood was out of compliance with their long range strategic plan of having open 
space within a quarter mile of each resident.  Stopping growth was counterproductive to the city, and Elaine took a 
different stance during the public hearings on the development.  She knew that green space was critical to residents’ 
health. Elaine understood that in order to reduce obesity in the populations, having connected neighborhoods increased 
walkability. 
 
Elaine spoke at the Council meeting the same evening that the Garden Gate developers presented the plans.  She 
proposed that the developers reserve funds to develop the limited green space. This public airing of her opinion was a 
minority position. She was now walking a thin line between advocating for healthy environment and appeasing her 
neighbors. 
 
In Summary, Elaine: 
 
 *   Advocated and followed the process to make Pharoah Head Open Space for over 12 years, 
 *   Recognized the need for open space on a personal and policy level, 
 *   Educated neighbors on governmental processes, including long range planning and public hearings, city code and 
parks department standards, 
 *   Encouraged and informed neighborhood advocates on effective strategies to support city efforts, 
 *   Identified and resolved neighbors’ concerns about the open space, and 
 *   Coordinated with city representatives. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of my proposal.  Whitney Taylor 

   



‐ 6 of 7 ‐ 
 

 

From: Cheryl L. Harmon [mailto:raindigger@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2015 5:12 PM 
To: Michael Cogle; Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Naming suggestion 
 
Mr. Cogle and Park Board, 
I wish to submit the suggestion of Brambly Park for the North Juanita Open Space.  This name is submitted in honor of 
former Park Board Member Sue Keller and the young ladies who addressed the Board requesting that the "brambly" 
space be cleared of invasive blackberries so that it could be used as a park by those who live nearby. 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Cheryl Harmon 
Juanita resident 

 
From: Helen Rasmussen [mailto:hkatrat@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Thursday, May 28, 2015 11:19 AM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Cc: Marc Sauze; Helen Rasmussen 
Subject: Name North Juanita Open Space 
 
Hello, 
I think NJOS should be named 'Kids Community Park' because the children of this neighborhood really helped to make 
this park an enjoyable and accessible green space. It is a park for everybody powered by kids, from toddlers to high 
school students. 
 
Not only did the neighborhood children advocate for the open space to be developed into a park at various community 
and park board meetings, but these children work at many of the Volunteer Events, alongside their parents to remove 
blackberry root balls and to mulch and plant the area. We have kid‐sized tools and gloves on‐site, so they can help 
safely. The name 'Kids Community Park' would also be a nod to the 80 goats (kids are also baby goats!) that 
consumed the invasive Himalayan Blackberries, which prevented access to the open space.  
 
The name 'Kids Community Park' would serve to remind everybody that anyone big or small can make a contribution to 
his/her neighborhood and the whole community benefits. 
Thank you for your consideration. 
Helen Rasmussen 

 
From: Loita Hawkinson [mailto:hawkdsi@ix.netcom.com]  
Sent: Saturday, May 09, 2015 11:23 AM 
To: Michael Cogle 
Subject: RE: Kirkland Neighborhood News: Kirkland Park Board seeks name for North Juanita Open Space 
 
Email content unrelated to park naming has been redacted. 
 
Now…the Juanita Open Space.  As near as I can tell, this was Annie Josten’s homestead.  I hope we have the homestead 
records at the hall.  The Jostens came in 1882 and left a big print on Juanita.  They married into the Langdon family and 
there are Josten descendents around.  Would be lovely to have something named in their honor.  So…I am thinking.  The 
homestead record has Annie H Josten.  We have history for an Annie R. Josten.  Want to know if this was a transcribing 
error.  If we have the actual record, we will be able to tell …… I hope. 
Have a happy Saturday.  Loita 



‐ 7 of 7 ‐ 
 

 

 
From: Bryce Figdore [mailto:brycefig@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Sunday, May 31, 2015 12:12 PM 
To: Cheryl Harmon 
Subject: Naming North Juanita Open Space 
 
Hello, 
 
I am submitting name suggestions for the North Juanita Open Space.  My suggestions are "Cavalier Grove Park"and 
"Cavalier Woods".  "Cavalier" is the legal description for neighborhood homes built during initial development in the 
1970s.   
 
Sincerely, 
Bryce Figdore  
12923 111th Pl NE  







8a. 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board  
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, Director 
 Linda Murphy, Recreation Manager 
 
Date: June 5, 2015 
 
Subject: ARC Center Project Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Park Board receive an update on the work plan for the Aquatics, Recreation and 
Community (ARC) Center Project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION 
 
At the Board’s June 10th meeting staff will share discussion points from the May 29th City 
Council retreat and the June 2nd City Council meeting regarding the formation of a Metropolitan 
Park District. 
 



9a. 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board  
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, Director 
 Sharon Rodman, Green Kirkland Partnership Supervisor 
 Ina Penberthy, Green Kirkland Partnership Environmental Outreach Specialist 
 
Date: June 5 2015 
 
Subject: Green Kirkland Partnership 20-Year Forest and Natural Areas Restoration Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Park Board receives the draft Green Kirkland Partnership’s 20-Year Forest and Natural 
Areas Restoration Plan update and provides written comments.  
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION 
 
Ina Penberthy, the City’s Environmental Outreach Specialist in the Green Kirkland Partnership 
(GKP) division of Parks and Community Services, will present the Board with a draft of the 
updated 20-Year Plan. 
  
In 2013, the King Conservation District approved a grant application from GKP for $50,000 to 
update the GKP’s 20-Year Forest Restoration Plan that had been approved by City Council 
Resolution in early 2008. This first Plan needs to be updated to include new neighborhoods that 
were annexed in 2011, and the updated Plan includes a reassessment of areas currently 
enrolled in restoration.  
 
In 2014, GKP contracted with Forterra to develop the updated Plan over two years. Work 
included mapping and ecological assessment surveys, conducting a capacity assessment for 
maintaining and growing the program, and engaging the public by hosting an Open House.  
 
The proposed schedule for drafting and completing the updated Plan by the end of 2015 
includes:  

 Engaging the public by hosting an Open House, March 24th. Done. 
 Drafting the plan, by May 29th. Done. 
 Presentation to the Park Board and request for review, June 10th  
 Review comments from the Park Board in writing, by July 8th  
 Review by the City Council, August 4th  
 Final review by Park Board and recommendation for Council approval, September 9th   
 Resolution approval by the City Council, October 5th  

 
Action requested is that the Park Board to review the Plan and provide written comments by 
email to Ina at ipenberthy@kirklandwa.gov by July 8th.  



Kingsgate Parks (Private & Public)

Produced by the City of Kirkland. © 2014 City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.
No warranties of any sort, including but not limited to accuracy, fitness, or

merchantability, accompany this product.

0.6

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Washington_North_FIPS_4601_Feet

Miles0.60 0.28

Notes

Legend

18,0001:

City Limits

Grid

QQ Grid

Cross Kirkland Corridor

Regional Rail Corridor

Major Streets

Interstate

Major Roads

Lakes

Neighborhood

Bridle Trails

Central Houghton

Everest

Finn Hill

Highlands

Juanita

Kingsgate

Lakeview

Market

Moss Bay

Norkirk

North Juanita

North Rose Hill

South Juanita

South Rose Hill

Totem Lake

Parks

Schools



9b. 
 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
To: Park Board 
 
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
 
Date: June 5, 2015 
 
 
Subject: Private Parks in the Kingsgate Neighborhood 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Park Board receive an update on staff discussions with representatives of Hazen Hills 
and Kingsgate 5 related to converting the private parks to public parks owned and/or managed 
by the City.  No action is required at this time. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
At the Board’s June meeting staff will provide an update on recent discussions with the Hazen 
Hills and Kingsgate 5 homeowners’ associations related to the private parks in their 
communities.  Attached as additional background is a map depicting the private and public 
parks located within the Kingsgate Neighborhood. 
 
 
Attachment 
 



9c. 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board    
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, CPRP, Director, Parks & Community Services 
 Jason Filan, Parks Operations Manager 
 
Date: June 2, 2015 
 
Subject: Juanita Heights Park – Warinske House Repurposing 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Park Board receive an update on the repurposing of the house located at Juanita 
Heights Park. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In March, 2013, the City acquired the Warsinske property.  The 2.31-acre property greatly 
enhanced public access to Juanita Heights Park off NE 124th Street.  In addition to the improved 
access, the purchase was in line with the City Council’s goal “to protect and enhance our natural 
environment for current residents and future generations.”  Acquisition of the Warsinske 
property helped preserve the greenspace from being developed and increased the size of 
Juanita Heights Park to 5.76 acres. 
 
With some renovations made by staff, the City was able to lease the single family residence on 
the property beginning in the spring of 2013.  Net receipts from the rental have totaled over 
$37,700.  Staff is proposing to invest a portion of these revenues to have the house removed 
and the area restored as useable park land.  Requests were solicited from several companies to 
provide staff a range of removal options which included:  
 
 Straight demolition – Putting the house into a dumpster 
 Recycling – Recycling the various components of the house 
 Repurposing – Taking the structure apart and rebuilding in another location 
 
Staff is pleased to report the repurposing bid came in with the lowest cost for removal at 
$9,300.  In this option, 99% of the current house would be rebuilt.  This option is not only the 
lowest cost, but the “greenest” of the options evaluated.   
 
With the structure removed it will provide neighborhood park space to Finn Hill Neighborhood 
residents and is consistent with meeting the level-of-service goals reflected in the Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan. 



Juanita Height 2015 
 

 


	1 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD Agenda June 10 2015
	3_ParkBoard_Minutes_May 13 2015 draft.v2
	7a3_Memo Style
	7a4_Memo Style
	7a5_Memo Style
	7b1 Staff update June 2015
	8a1_Park Board memo_NJOS Naming_June 2015
	8a2_HELP US NAME THE NORTH JUANITA OPEN SPACE
	8a3_NJOS naming emails through June 1 2015
	8a4_R-00004799  Establishing Policies and Procedures for the Naming of Public Parks and Facilities
	8b1 Staff Memo_ARC Center_Park Board_June2015
	9a1_Staff Memo_GKP 20Yr Plan June2015 060215
	9b2_Kingsgate Parks - Public and Private
	9b2_Kingsgate Parks Staff Memo June 2015
	9c1_Juanita Heights 2015 Re-purposing house memo
	9c2_Map of Juanita Heights Park



